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Communication and Visibility Plan 

Introduction  

1. Overview of Project Organization 

2. Communication Strategy 

2.1. Overall communication objectives 

2.2. Key Audiences and Target Groups 

2.3. {ǇŜŎƛŦƛŎ ƻōƧŜŎǘƛǾŜǎ ŦƻǊ ŜŀŎƘ ǘŀǊƎŜǘ ƎǊƻǳǇΣ ǊŜƭŀǘŜŘ ǘƻ ǘƘŜ ŀŎǘƛƻƴΩǎ ƻōƧŜŎǘƛǾŜǎ ŀƴŘ ǘƘŜ phases of the 

project cycle 

3. Communication activities  

3.1. Main activities that will take place during the period covered by the communication and visibility 

plan. 

Include details of: 

¶ the nature of the activities 

¶ the responsibilities for delivering the activities 

3.2. Communication tools chosen 

¶ Include details of advantages of particular tools (media, advertising, events, etc.) in the local 

context 

¶ Project Identity (project logo, project website) 

¶ Printed Materials (Project Leaflets and Brochures; News, articles) 

¶ Audio-visual Materials (TV news coverage) 

¶ Online and Electronic Materials 

¶ Promotional Materials 

¶ Press conferences 

4. Indicators of achievements and methods of dissemination 

¶ Completion of the communication objectives 

¶ Include indicators of achievement for the different tools proposed, technical devices, through mass 

media, etc. 

5. Provisional List of EU Visibility Items and Resources 

5.1. Human Resources 

¶ Person/days required to implement the communication activities 

¶ Members of the management team responsible for communication activities 

5.2. Financial resources 

¶ Budget required to implement the communication activities (in absolute figures and 

as a percentage of the overall budget for the action) 
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Introduction 

This document describes a general communication strategy and specific activities dedicated to 

communication and visibility for the EC-ŦǳƴŘŜŘ ǇǊƻƧŜŎǘ ά9ƴǾƛǊƻƴƳŜƴǘŀƭ tǊƻǘŜŎǘƛƻƴ ƻŦ LƴǘŜǊƴŀǘƛƻƴŀƭ wƛǾŜǊ 

.ŀǎƛƴǎέΦ 

The Communication and Visibility Plan aims to address activities and communications: 

- to raise awareness around the project and its communication activities, objectives and impact;  

- to develop effective, appropriate messaging of interest to the target groups and initiatives. 

 

1. Overview of Project Organization 

Project:  ά9ƴǾƛǊƻƴƳŜƴǘŀƭ tǊƻǘŜŎǘƛƻƴ ƻŦ LƴǘŜǊƴŀǘƛƻƴŀƭ wƛǾŜǊ .ŀǎƛƴǎέ. 

The global objective of the project is to improve water quality in the transboundary river basin of the wider 

Black Sea region in view of reinforcement of the current actions in pollution reduction and water resource 

management. 

The technical assistance will support the following: 

¶ improved availability and quality of data on the biological, chemical and hydro-morphological status 

of the selected transboundary river basins including groundwater; 

¶ improved design and implementation of the River Basin Management Plans. 

 

Project Duration:  January 2012-January 2016 

Funding Value:   7,5 million Euros 

Implementing Organization:   Consortium led by Hulla & Co. Human Dynamics KG Land Resources Division 

Countries:   Armenia, Azerbaijan, Belarus, Georgia, Moldova, Russia, and Ukraine. 

Brief Description of the Project 

Reinforces current actions in environmental protection and water resources management, supported 

by previous EU funded transboundary projects in the region in terms of cooperation as well as convergence 

towards the principles of Integrated Water Resources Management (IWRM) and the EU Water Framework 

Directive (WFD), by joint development of River Basin Management Plans (RBMP) in selected pilot river 

basins of wider Black Sea region. 
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2. Communication Strategy 

The strategy sets up approaches and tools in order to keep the stakeholders regularly informed and to 

ensure the visibility of the project. 

On visibility, the strategy contains the requirements to be undertaken by all implementing partners under 

contract and financing agreements which specifically refer to them, and suggests activities that may be 

incorporated to build a communication and visibility plan that will highlight, in a dynamic way, the 

participation and impact of the participation of the European Union (EU) and each selected pilot River 

basins in joint development of River Basin Management Plans (RBMP) and in supporting environmental 

protection of water resources. 

2.1. Communication objectives are following: 

¶ Ensure timely communication to relevant State establishments and/or organisations; 

¶ Ensure effective communication between groups; 

¶ Ensure timely notices for requirements/meetings; 

¶ Ensure optimum results for all communications and project expectations; 

¶ Measure the results of the communication strategy execution and revise accordingly. 

In order to maximize the impact of communication efforts: 

¶ Activities need to be timely; 

¶ Information used must be accurate; 

¶ All communication and visibility activities should be carried out in close cooperation with the 

appropriate Delegation of the European Union or the relevant department of the European 

Commission; 

¶ Messages should interest the target audience(s); 

¶ Activities should be appropriate in terms of resources (human and financial); 

¶ Effective communication is critical to the successful implementation of the project, in order to 

ensure that the project results are disseminated to the widest possible audience; 

¶ Communication activities will be implemented in partnership relations with all relevant/similar 

international programs being implemented in the region. 

2.2. Key Audiences and Target Groups 

The main target groups include organizations responsible for water management in the beneficiary 

countries: 

¶ Armenia: Ministry of Nature Protection; 

¶ Azerbaijan: Ministry of Ecology and Natural Resources; 

¶ Belarus: Ministry of Natural Resources and Environmental Protection; 

¶ Georgia: Ministry of Energy and Natural Resources; 

¶ Moldova: Ministry of Environment; 
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¶ Russian Federation: Ministry of Natural Resources and Ecology; 

¶ Ukraine: Ministry of Ecology and Natural Resources. 

National agencies and river basin authorities dealing with monitoring and water resources 

management are  involved and would benefit from the project activities.   

The list of beneficiary institutions is given in the table below: 

Country Leading Beneficiary Institution Other Key Beneficiary Institutions/Agencies 

Armenia Water Resources Management 

Agency, under the Ministry of Nature 

Protection 

http://www.mnp.am 

¶ Environmental Impact Monitoring Centre under 

the Ministry of Nature Protection 

(http://www.armmonitoring.am) 

¶ Hydro-geological Monitoring Centre under the 

Ministry of Nature Protection 

¶ Armenian State Hydro-meteorological and 

Monitoring Service under the Ministry of 

Emergency Situation 

¶ State Committee of Water Systems under the 

Ministry of Territorial Administration 

(http://www.armstat.am)  

 

Azerbaijan Ministry of Ecology and Natural 

Resources (www.eco.gov.az ) 

State Water Resources Agency under 

the, Ministry of Emergency Situations 

(www.fhn.gov.az ) 

¶ National Environmental Monitoring Department 

under the Ministry of Ecology and Natural 

Resources 

¶ National Hydro meteorology Department under 

the Ministry of Ecology and Natural Resources 

(www.eco.gov.az) 

¶ Hydro-geological Expedition under the Ministry 

of Ecology and Natural resources 

(www.eco.gov.az ) 

¶ Azerbaijan Amelioration and Water Farm OJSC 

Belarus Ministry of Natural Resources and 

Environmental Protection 

(http://www.minpriroda.by ) 

¶ State institution άwŜǇǳōƭƛŎŀƴ /ŜƴǘŜǊ ƻŦ 

Analytical Control in the Sphere of 

9ƴǾƛǊƻƴƳŜƴǘŀƭ tǊƻǘŜŎǘƛƻƴέ 

(http://www.minpriroda.by/en/areas/envmoni

toring) 

¶ wŜǇǳōƭƛŎŀƴ ¦ƴƛǘŀǊȅ 9ƴǘŜǊǇǊƛǎŜ ά/ŜƴǘǊŀƭ 

Research Institute for Complex Use of Water 

http://www.mnp.am/
http://www.armmonitoring.am/
http://www.armstat.am/
http://www.eco.gov.az/
http://www.fhn.gov.az/
http://www.eco.gov.az/
http://www.eco.gov.az/
http://www.minpriroda.by/
http://www.minpriroda.by/en/areas/envmonitoring
http://www.minpriroda.by/en/areas/envmonitoring
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wŜǎƻǳǊŎŜǎέ  όhttp://www.cricuwr.by ) 

¶ {ǘŀǘŜ Lƴǎǘƛǘǳǘƛƻƴ άwŜǇǳōƭƛŎŀƴ IȅŘǊƻ-

ƳŜǘŜƻǊƻƭƻƎƛŎŀƭ /ŜƴǘŜǊέ όƘǘǘǇΥκκǇƻƎƻŘŀΦōȅκ ύ  

¶ άwŜǇǳōƭƛŎŀƴ /ŜƴǘŜǊ ŦƻǊ wŀŘƛŀǘƛƻƴ /ƻƴǘǊƻƭ ŀƴŘ 

9ƴǾƛǊƻƴƳŜƴǘŀƭ aƻƴƛǘƻǊƛƴƎέ όhttp://rad.org.by ) 

¶ Republican Unitary Enterprise "Belarusian 

Research Geological Exploration Institute" 

(http://geology.org.by ) 

Georgia Ministry of Environment Protection of 

Georgia 

Agency of Natural Resources under 

the Ministry of Energy and Natural 

resources (http://www.menr.gov.ge)  

¶ National Environmental Agency (NEA) 

Moldova Ministry of Environment 

(http://mediu.gov.md/ ) 

¶ !ƎŜƴŎȅ ά!ǇŜƭŜ aƻƭŘƻǾŜƛέ 

(www.apelemoldovei.gov.md ) 

¶ State Hydrometeorological Service 

(http://www.meteo.md/)  

Ukraine Ministry of Ecology and Natural 

Resources of Ukraine  

(http://www.menr.gov.ua) 

State Agency for Water Resources 

(http://www.scwm.gov.ua ) 

State Hydro-meteorological Service 

(www.meteo.gov.ua ) 

 

 

The end-ōŜƴŜŦƛŎƛŀǊȅ ƻŦ ǘƘŜ ǇǊƻƧŜŎǘΩǎ ǊŜǎǳƭǘǎ ǿƛƭƭ ōŜ ǘƘŜ ǇŜƻǇƭŜ ƭƛǾƛƴƎ ƛƴ ǘƘŜǎŜ ōŀǎƛƴǎΣ ǿƘƛŎƘ ǿƛƭƭ ōŜƴŜŦƛǘ ŦǊƻƳ 

the improvement of the quality and quantity of water resources. 

Visibility and communication activities in the partner countries will be implemented in collaboration with 

the EC Delegations, in line with the Communication and Visibility Manual for EU External Actions.  

It is important to involve the local NGO (non-governmental organizations) into projects implementation. 

Therefore, the objective is to identify the key NGOs could be able to cooperate with the beneficiaries and 

make an input.  

All types of communication must be addressed to ensure that communication flows to all necessary parties 

when they need it. 

Specific target groups are basin organizations (including all stakeholders) dealing with water management 

and development in pilot basins 

http://www.cricuwr.by/
http://rad.org.by/
http://geology.org.by/
http://www.menr.gov.ge/
http://mediu.gov.md/
http://www.apelemoldovei.gov.md/
http://www.meteo.md/
http://www.menr.gov.ua/
http://www.scwm.gov.ua/
http://www.meteo.gov.ua/
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3. Communication activities 

 

3.1. Main activities that will take place during the period covered by the communication and visibility 

plan. 

The communication activities and resources will be focused to achieving maximum possible awareness and 

impact amongst the target groups. 

Communication activities within the Project are specified below and include: 

¶ Public events and visits in each Project  country  (Partnership development meetings, workshops); 

¶ Organization of seminars and discussions (on reports, policy papers, best practices of River Basins  

management in other countries and as well as issues raised during project implementation) with 

participation of target groups; 

¶ Planning and implementing the Public Awareness Campaigns - providing educational events 

(trainings) for journalists involved into the subjects (Information  Days) and motivational activities 

for mass media (competitions), Day of Europe (once a year); 

¶ Festivals and big public actions arranged by NGOs (once a year in each countries) 

¶ Involving representatives of relevant ministries, industry, media in project advisory boards; 

¶ Close cooperation with the Delegation of the European Union in the respective countries (EU 

newsletter).The Press and Information Officer is responsible for coordinating the overall EU 

communication strategy in the country or countries to which his/her EU Delegation is accredited; 

¶ Development and timely update of the web-site for the Project (http://blacksea-riverbasins.net), 

reflecting activities in each beneficiary country.. As a minimum, links should be made to the 

websites of the local EU Delegation and the Europe Aid Cooperation Office as follows:  

http://ec.europa.eu/europeaid/index_en.htm 

¶ Preparation of project visibility materials produced in English and Russian and promotional items. 

 

3.2. Communication tools 

There is a wide range of tools available for communications work, and the key for this project will be to 

choose low cost tools which have a wide reach. It will also be important to select a mix of tools in order to 

reach the range of audiences outlined above. 

It is therefore proposed to use a variety of instruments including web-based, mass media, events, as 

well as press-releases and leaflets, using all relevant opportunities which are open for the cooperation  

Beneficiaries or implementing partners or international organizations should use their normal 

ǎǘŀǘƛƻƴŜǊȅ ƛƴ ƭŜǘǘŜǊƘŜŀŘǎ ƻǊ ŦŀȄ ƘŜŀŘŜǊǎ ǎƘŜŜǘǎΣ ōǳǘ ǎƘƻǳƭŘ ŀŘŘ ǘƘŜ ǇƘǊŀǎŜ ά¢Ƙƛǎ ǇǊƻƧŜŎǘκǇǊƻƎǊŀƳƳŜ ƛǎ 

ŦǳƴŘŜŘ ōȅ ǘƘŜ 9ǳǊƻǇŜŀƴ ¦ƴƛƻƴέ ŀǎ ǿŜƭƭ ŀǎ ǘƘŜ 9¦ ŦƭŀƎ ǿƘŜƴ ŎƻƳƳǳƴƛŎŀǘƛƴƎ ƻƴ ƳŀǘǘŜǊǎ ǊŜƭŀǘŜŘ ǘƻ ǘƘŜ 

action.  

http://ec.europa.eu/europeaid/index_en.htm
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All the publications must contain EU definition; EU funding statement; links (to Delegation, Europe Aid 

ec.europa.eu/world). 

The graphic identity of the EU must enjoy an equally prominent place and size as that of the contractor or 

implementing partner. Specific rules apply for international organizations.  

The disclaimer άThis publication has been produced with the assistance of the European Union. The contents 
of this publication are the sole responsibility of <name of the author/contractor/implementing partner/ 
international organisation> and can in no way be taken to reflect the views of the 9ǳǊƻǇŜŀƴ ¦ƴƛƻƴΦέ must 
be included in all publications.  
 
Other elements of the communication and visibility tools might include: 

¶ Press releases- can be a very useful contribution to the communication activities around an action. 

As a general rule, a press release should be issued at the start of all actions. The release should 

incorporate the EU flag, mention that funding was provided by the EU and mention the amount of 

EU funding in euro and in the local currency. (See a template for a press release in the Annex) 

¶ Press conferences- to be organized in the context of the communication and visibility plan should 

always be organized in cooperation with the Commission. The invitations should bear an EU flag in 

accordance with the applicable general rules;  

¶ Press visits- group visits by journalists to project sites may offer additional visibility opportunities. 

Such visits should be well-timed and focus on tangible achievements. Where appropriate, groups of 

visiting journalists should be accompanied by representatives of the EU Delegation. 

¶ Leaflets or brochures ς publications such as leaflets, brochures and newsletters can be useful in 

communicating the results of an action to specific audiences. Should include information about the 

objectives of the Project; about the Components in detail; about the target audiences.  

Different number will be produced in Russian and English languages (a template for brochure is 

presented in the Annex) 

¶ Newsletters - is about 1000 signs in each language (English and Russian language). All the project 

news is to be submitted either to the contractual PR Agency or directly to the Press & Information 

Section Manager in Word format file for approval and layout development according to the 

schedule of EU Co-operation Newsletter`s publication. (An example of the EU Co-operation 

Newsletter is in the Annex.) 

¶ Banners -   plastic or textile banners should be produced when specified in the communication 

strategy of an action. They are intended to serve as a backdrop for special events such as 

inaugurations and conferences. ¢ƘŜȅ ǎƘƻǳƭŘ ƘŀǾŜ ƭŀǊƎŜ ǇǊƛƴǘ tǊƻƧŜŎǘ ǘƛǘƭŜ ŀƴŘ 9/ ŀƴŘ ŎƻƴǘǊŀŎǘƻǊΩǎ 

logos with metal stand. Size - 2.20m-0.80m. 

¶ Promotional items - paper ŦƻƭŘŜǊǎ ǿƛǘƘ ǘƘŜ 9/ ŀƴŘ ŎƻƴǘǊŀŎǘƻǊΩǎ ƭƻgos and project title; pens with 

the project title and EU logo; other promotional products (desktop office accessories, mouse pad, 

calendar, USB memory sticks, etc.). 

All the promotional items produced should be clearly identified with the EU flag, and if possible carry the 
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ǿƻǊŘǎ ά9ǳǊƻǇŜŀƴ ¦ƴƛƻƴέ 

¶ Photographs - photographs showing the progress of all actions should be taken where appropriate 

to document the progress of actions and events related to these (their launch, visits by EU officials, 

and so on) so that they can be used in communication material. All photos must be of 300dpi 

minimum and contain name, contact person, organization, and owner of copyright, name of action, 

duration, country and date. 

¶ Information campaigns - large actions can support the organizing of an information campaign 

during the lifetime of the action. Such campaigns can raise the visibility of the action and the EU by 

promoting discussion of the issues around the environment and etc. Such a campaign requires 

adequate resources in terms of management, and should always be coordinated with the 

Commission. 

 

4. Indicators of achievements and methods of dissemination 

 

Indicators of achievement on completion of the communication objectives: 

ω Target groups in the region are aware about the project (its goals objectives, activities, 

outputs, etc.);  

ω Target groups awareness on River basins related issues is raised; 

ω One pilot project in each project country is implemented and is known among   

stakeholders;   

ω Key business companies are involved into the project; 

ω At least 3 trainings/press visits (in total) for journalists is organized by project; 

ω Media coverage on project activities and river basins related issues in general is increased 

(articles in local and national newspapers, TV and radio reportages, electronic digests, bulletins, 

etc.); 

ω ! ƧƻǳǊƴŀƭƛǎǘǎΩ ƴŜǘǿƻǊƪ ǿƛƭƭ ōŜ ŎǊŜŀǘŜŘΤ 

Provisions for feedback (when applicable):  

¶ During trainings/press visits will be used special assessment forms that will help the project team to 

make future activities more effective; 

¶ The project web site as well as roundtables and discussions will be used to get feedback from target 

group on project activities.  

 

5. Provisional List of EU Visibility Items and Resources 

5.1.  Human Resources 
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¶ Junior Short term Expert in Communication & Visibility ς managing and supervising of 
communication and visibility 

¶ PR/communication organization ς contracted as the third party for implementing of the events, 
publishing, translation etc. 

¶ Team Leader  and Deputy Team Leader 

¶ Office managers 

 
5.2. Provisional list of visibility items and financial resources 

There is a list of Events with timing to plan participation there for increasing the Project visibility:  

¶ Europe Day ς every year in May (dates are to be specified by the EU Delegation in every country 

¶ International Water Day ς 22nd March  

¶ European Info Day ς end of April- beginning of May  

¶ Participation in the activity of European Village- June 

¶ Participation in the round tables and seminars (dates and locations need to be specified in each 
country with local beneficiaries) 

 

 

No Promotion materials: Events Amount Date 

1. Projects leaflets Europe Day  

International Water Day 

European Info Day  

450 in Russian 

200 in English 

March 2012 

2. Project Banners Press conference 

Press visit 

 

3 pcs July 2012 

3. Project notepads Europe Day  

International Water Day 

European Info Day 

100 pcs July 2012 

4. Pens, bags Europe Day  

International Water Day 

European Info Day 

200 pcs of pens 

200 pcs of bags 

July 2012 

5. Other promotional 
products (mouse pad and 
calendar, USB memory 
sticks, etc.) 

 200 mouse pads 

100 calendars 

200 USB memory 
sticks 

200 project folders 

100 small flags  

December 
2012 and 
throughout 
the project 
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Annex: Templates for Communication Products  

 

The produced promotional products will follow the guideline of the EU Communication and Visibility Manual 
(http://ec.europa.eu/europeaid/work/visibility/documents/communication_and_visibility_manual_en.pdf) and have 
the below outlook: 

Pen: 

 

Bag: 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

http://ec.europa.eu/europeaid/work/visibility/documents/communication_and_visibility_manual_en.pdf


 Inception Report 

Annex 10: Communication and Visibility Plan 

Human Dynamics KG Consortium   Page 11 of 15 

EU Co-operation newsletter (template): 
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Press release (template and example)  
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Example of EU brochure/leaflet 
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EU VISIBILITY GUIDELINES  IN BRIEF 

General 
Á Properly plan communications actions 
Á Focus on outcomes (results) of the project, not the procedures 
Á Activities should be timely 
Á Information must be accurate 
Á Messages should interest the target audience 
Á Activities should be appropriate (in terms of resources spent and expected impact) 

Visibility Rules 
Á Contractors and organisations use their own letterheads 
Á All actions must be approved by ECD and/or organised with its participation 
Á Flag must always be displayed on all materials (at all events) 
Á ECD should be given copies of all materials 

Action Specific Requirements 

Press Release Á Issues at start of all actions 
Á Must have flag, mention that EC funds, and the amount 

Publications Á Disclaimer 
Á EU definition 
Á EU funding statement 
Á Links (to Delegation, EuropeAid ec.europa.eu/world) 

Websites Á Must have link to EuropeAid: ec.europa.eu/europeaid/index_en.htm 

Display Panels Á Prominent and in view 
Á From start of action until six months after completion 

Commemorative Plaques Á EU funding statement 
Á From start of action until six months after completion 

Vehicles and equipment Á Phase *Provided with the support of the EU* 

Promotional items Á EU flag and (if possible= phrase – European Union and message 

Photos Á 300dpi minimum 
Á Name, contact person, organisation, owner of copyright, name of action, 

duration, country and date 

Audiovisual Á EU flag at beginning and end 

Events Á Logo displayed 

Reporting/publications Á Disclaimer 

For EU flag: http://europa.eu/abc/symbols/emblem/download_en.htm  

EU Statement: ά¢ƘŜ 9ǳǊƻǇŜŀƴ ¦ƴƛƻƴ ƛǎ ƳŀŘŜ ǳǇ ƻŦ нт aŜƳōŜǊ {ǘŀǘŜǎ ǿƘƻ ƘŀǾŜ ŘŜŎƛŘŜŘ ǘƻ ƎǊŀŘǳŀƭƭȅ ƭƛƴƪ 
together their know-how, resources and destinies. Together, during a period of enlargement of 50 years, 
they have built a zone of stability, democracy and sustainable development whilst maintaining cultural 
diversity, tolerance and individual freedoms. The European Union is committed to sharing its achievements 
ŀƴŘ ƛǘǎ ǾŀƭǳŜǎ ǿƛǘƘ ŎƻǳƴǘǊƛŜǎ ŀƴŘ ǇŜƻǇƭŜǎ ōŜȅƻƴŘ ƛǘǎ ōƻǊŘŜǊǎέ 

EU funding statement: ά¢Ƙƛǎ ǇǊƻƧŜŎǘκǇǊƻƎǊŀƳƳŜ ƛǎ ŦǳƴŘŜŘ ōȅ ǘƘŜ 9ǳǊƻǇŜŀƴ ¦ƴƛƻƴέ 

Disclaimer: ά¢ƘŜ ŎƻƴǘŜƴǘǎ ƻŦ ǘƘƛǎ ǇǳōƭƛŎŀǘƛƻƴ ŀǊŜ ǘƘŜ ǎƻƭŜ ǊŜǎǇƻƴǎƛōƛƭƛǘȅ ƻŦ ғƴŀƳŜ ƻŦ ǘƘŜ 
author/contractor/implementing partner> and can in no way be taken to reflect the views of the European 
Uƴƛƻƴέ. 

 

http://europa.eu/abc/symbols/emblem/download_en.htm

